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New Exhibit at Town Hall 
 

 

During Jamestown’s resort era – the years from the mid-

1870s, when steam ferries made Conanicut Island more easily 

accessible, until the 1930s when the combined effects of the 

automobile and the Great Depression changed the way 

people vacationed – summer visitors flocked to Jamestown.   

The town’s population more than doubled in the 

summer months.  Over 1,000 visitors could be 

accommodated daily in the hotels, inns, and boarding houses.  

Many of the summer people came in late June and stayed 

into September to escape stifling city heat.    

The era is celebrated in a new permanent exhibit in the 

back stairwell of the Jamestown Town Hall.  Enlarged 

photographs of all the major hotels and some of the smaller 

inns hang above the stair rail.  At the landing, two 

photographs of East Ferry – one from 1898 and one from 

1926 – show the scene that greeted the traveler landing from 

Newport. 

Above the photographs are original signs from the JHS 

collection: two from different eras of the Bay Voyage Hotel –

the only hotel from the era still in operation – and one each 

from the Bay View, whose huge tower dominated the corner 

of Conanicus and Narragansett avenues; the Harbor View, 

which stood on Conanicus Avenue between Knowles Court 

and Longfellow Road; and Winswepe, the home of the 

Beavertail Country Club on Beavertail Road. 

 Adams Taylor, who was also responsible for the JHS’s 

exhibit of the Land Agreement document, designed and 

installed the exhibit.  A gift from Trum and Sallie Richard of 

LaJolla, CA, furnished the funding.  Mrs. Richard, a 

descendant of H. Audley Clarke who owned Winswepe, also 

donated the Winswepe sign.  The society is most grateful to 

each of them.
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Bay Voyage signs and photograph in the Town Hall stairwell. 
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Honor Roll of Volunteers for 2010-2011 
 

 
Each year we acknowledge the people who have 

contributed time and energy to the society’s 

endeavors.  Volunteers help the JHS in many different 

ways – as greeters at the windmill and the museum, as 

staff for events, as members of boards and 

committees, and as specialists who contribute their 

expertise to accomplish a particular action.   

Many of the 142 individuals listed below have 

served in several different capacities.  The society 

thanks them all for their hard work and dedication. 

Alex Allardt 
Dick Allphin 
Joyce Allphin 
Paul Andrews 
Suzi Andrews 
Rita Antine 
Stacey Antine 
Guy Archambault 
Carolyn Armington 
Judy Bell 
Nancy Bennett 
Jane Bentley 
Anna Bernath 
Lisa Bew 
Judith Boone  
Fran Boyer 
George Boyer 
Joan Briggs 
Paul Brunelle 
Carol Buglio 
Alan Burse 
Bill Burgin 
Jim Buttrick 
Geoff Campbell 
Shelley Campbell 
Patti Cassidy 
Donna Chellis 
Matt Clarke 
Jemma Craig 
Ann Crompton 
Fuzz Crompton 
Elizabeth Delude-Dix 
Loren Deveau 
Greg DiGasper 
Donna Drago 
 

Joe Drago 
Patrick Driscoll 
Connie Payne Enright 
John Enright 
Rosemary Enright 
Tricia Evangelista 
Paula Florentino 
Caroline Frank 
Tricia Frary 
Charlene Gamble 
Laura Gorham 
Dona Gibbs 
Marcia Glassie 
Janet Grant 
John Grant 
Eleanor Gravdahl 
Erica Gregg 
Pam Haas 
Brookie Harding 
Mary Heath 
Melissa Hicks 
Dori Hirsch 
John Horton 
Bill House 
Ellen House 
Dick Hutchinson 
Rose Karentz 
Varoujan Karentz 
Delia Klingbeil 
Bill Knapp  
Judy Knight 
Carol Lake 
Anne Lane 
Eugene Lee 
Ras Licchio 
Marcie Lindsay 

Dorrie Linn 
Anne Livingston 
Bruce Livingston 
Joe Logan 
Nancy Logan 
Fran Lopes 
Diana Luth 
Sue Maden 
Kathy Maloney 
Pede Manchester 
Peter Marcus 
Myrna Maxfield 
Larry McDonald 
Jeff McDonough 
Kim McDonough 
Frank Meyer 
Jill Meyer 
Martha Milot 
Jane Miner  
Don Minto 
Heather Minto 
Heidi Keller Moon 
Bill Munger 
John Murphy 
Ken Newman 
Alice Noble 
Nonie O’Farrell 
Bill O’Farrell 
Kathy O’Sullivan 
Don O’Laughlin 
Teresa Paiva-Weed 
Roland Parent 
Patti Pereira 
Linnea Petersen 
Paul Petersen 
Marion Pierce  

Paula Pollard 
Babs Porter 
Betty Purdum 
Connie Rainone 
Sav Rebecchi 
Deb Ruggiero 
Dianne Rugh 
Jim Rugh 
Nora Santemoor 
Bob Saunders 
Ginny Saunders 
Sally Schott 
Colleen Smith 
William W. Smith 
Bill Sprague 
Deb Swistak 
Joe Tamburini 
Adams Taylor 
Betty Ann Taylor 
Gayen Thompson 
Geoff Turner 
Pat Venable 
Joan Vessella 
Skip Walls 
Chris Walsh 
George Warner 
Linda Warner 
Dennis Webster 
Georgia Wright 
Harry Wright 
James Wright 
Mary Wright 
Ann Zartler 
Greg Zeek 
Deede Zeek 





 

There is always a danger in assembling a list of this 

sort that someone who has worked hard for the 

organization is unintentionally omitted.   

Please let us know, so that we can correct the 

omission.  Call 423-2674 or send an email to 

info@jamestownhistoricalsociety.org.



Fall 2011 – 3 

 

 

From the President 
 

by Linnea Petersen 
 

One of the JHS’s major goals has been to reach 

out to the community in order to share with others the 

history of Jamestown.  This past season has proven to 

be a great success in that effort.  A yearlong series of 

programs entitled Jamestown and the Silver Screen was 

spearheaded by our Collections Committee.  Fifteen 

community events about Jamestown and 

Jamestowners’ involvement in movies were held this 

past year with 14 non-profit Jamestown organizations 

participating in these very popular programs.   

Our exhibit at the museum – Jamestown on Stage and 

Screen – carried on the theme and featured videos 

made by our Lawn Avenue 5th grade students on 

historical aspects of Jamestown as part of their 

Jamestown History Unit.  Videos made by young 

people from our “Teen Center” were also included in 

the exhibit.  These videos were made possible, in part, 

by a legislative grant sponsored by our State 

Representative, Deb Ruggiero.   

We are now on TV!  Please be sure to visit our 

website – jamestownhistoricalsociety.org – to see 

installments from an occasional TV series entitled 

From the Vault featuring Sue Maden and Rosemary 

Enright.  The most recent instalment highlights this 

year’s exhibit.  The first one told the history of the 

JHS.  Also, from this website, you will find an easy 

link to the material in our collection through our on-

line catalog.  This new software has tremendously 

improved the ease and speed with which our 

collection can be accessed on line. 

At our Annual Meeting in August, we recognized 

board members Deb Swistak, Dennis Webster, and 

Sue Maden, who were stepping down, and thanked 

them for their valuable service.  We also elected Judy 

Bell, Harry Wright, and Matt Clarke to the board.   

We were delighted by Eugene Lee, our guest 

speaker that evening.  Mr. Lee, who is resident 

designer at Trinity Repertory Company, an Emmy 

award winner for the production design of NBC’s 

“Saturday Night Live,” and a three time Tony award 

winner, gave us a glimpse into the fascinating and 

creative world of set and production design. 

Our Members Only party that kicked off our 

house tour weekend was a tremendous success with 

over 95 people attending.  We are very grateful to 

Nonie and Bill O’Farrell for inviting us to their 

beautiful home on Beaverhead Farm.  We enjoyed 

lively conversation, impressive views of the pastures 

and Mackerel Cove, and visits to the historic Arnold 

cemetery down the hill from the house.   

The next day we crossed Fort Getty Road to Fox 

Hill Farm.  Graciously hosted by the owners, Patrick 

Driscoll and Jemma Craig, we were able to tour not 

only the beautifully and carefully renovated 

farmhouse, but also “The Crickets,” a wonderful 

summer bungalow built in 1929, and the Cottrell burial 

ground.   

A beautiful day, two lovely homes, and spectacular 

views of the fields and the West Passage created an 

idyllic experience for all who attended.   

Eleanor Gravdahl generously offered her home, 

"Birdview," for our annual Volunteer Appreciation 

Party.  The clear evening afforded phenomenal views 

of the East Passage to the more than 60 people who 

attended.  I would like to thank Dianne Rugh who 

helped me tremendously in organizing this event, 

Georgia Wright who served us, volunteering her time 

as part of her community service hours, and Eleanor 

whose home really “set the stage” for a most enjoyable 

party.  

 We are an all-volunteer organization so 

everything we do depends on our members’ 

willingness to serve.  If you are already a volunteer, 

thank you!  Your efforts are very much appreciated.  

 This a very special time for the Jamestown 

Historical Society as 2012 marks the 100th anniversary 

of the Society.  One hundred years ago a small group 

of residents who were concerned about preservation 

of “The Old Jamestown Mill” founded the JHS for 

that purpose.  Those people “stepped up” in 1912 and 

volunteered and, in that process, saved one of 

Jamestown’s most important landmarks.  I urge you to 

“step up,” too, by volunteering your time and talents 

in our ongoing efforts to preserve, protect, share, and 

display the wonderful history of Jamestown.  Your 

willingness to do that could bring to our organization 

a whole new meaning and emphasis to the old phrase, 

“and the rest is history”! 
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Programs 
 

by Mary Heath

Many of the programs sponsored this year by the 

JHS were part of the Jamestown and the Silver Screen 

series.  The series, which involved 14 Jamestown non-

profits and 15 separate events, was initiated by Sue 

Maden, who chaired the ad hoc committee that 

organized the events. 

In addition to bringing Steven Feinberg, Executive 

Director, Rhode Island Film & Television Office, to 

Jamestown in March to discuss movie-making in 

Rhode Island and announce the filming of Moonrise 

Kingdom at locations on Conanicut Island, the society 

sponsored/co-sponsored the final two programs in 

the series in November. 

“Clips and Quips” and Crash Dive 

“Clips and Quips" on November 4 attracted over 

85 people to watch short scenes from seven movies 

with Jamestown connections and to listen to the 

reminiscences of Jamestowners involved in the making 

those films.  The stories ranged from Babs Porter’s 

fond recollections of her friendship with Dana 

Andrews established during the filming of Crash Dive 

in 1942 to Ras Licchio’s accounts of Bill Murray’s golf 

practice on the set of the yet-to-be-released Moonrise 

Kingdom.   

On November 11, in honor of Veterans’ Day, the 

JHS, joined the Veterans of Foreign Wars and the 

American Legion to sponsor a showing of Crash Dive. 

Parts of the World War II submarine movie – 

particularly the underwater segments that showed the 

very real submarine nets that blocked the entrance to 

Narragansett Bay – were filmed here, and the stars 

lived in Jamestown during the filming.   

Annual Meeting 

The speaker chosen for the JHS annual meeting 

on August 10 was also in keeping with the Jamestown 

and the Silver Screen theme. In addition to being resident 

designer at Trinity Repertory Company in Providence 

since 1967, Eugene Lee is the production designer for 

NBC’s Saturday Night Live.  His film credits include 

Coppola’s Hammett, Huston’s Mr. North, and Malle’s 

Vanya on 42nd Street.   

Mr. Lee brought with him models of several of his 

stage sets, which delighted everybody. 

Annual House Tour 

The annual house tour featured two houses on 

Fox Hill Farm on Fort Getty Road.  The tour included 

access to the farm, with its panoramic views of the 

West Passage, and to the Cottrell family burial ground. 

Cottrells owned the property from the early 19th to the 

mid 20th centuries   

The exact date of the farmhouse toured by about 

150 visitors on September 17 is unknown, although 

the core of the current house was certainly there by 

1733 when it is mentioned in a will.  Over the 

intervening centuries, many changes have been made 

and seeing the way in which the current owners, 

Jemma Craig and Patrick Driscoll, have integrated 

their improvements into the historic fabric of the 

house intrigued the visitors.   

The second house on the tour, “The Crickets,” 

was a Hodgson company prefab six-room bungalow.  

It remains practically unchanged since it was built in 

1929. 

Plans for 2012 

This coming year is the 100th anniversary of the 

Jamestown Historical Society.  Most of our activities – 

including Windmill Day – will celebrate our history 

and our success in our mission to collect, preserve and 

share our town’s heritage.   

Eugene Lee addresses JHS Annual Meeting 
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Jamestown Windmill  
 

by Linnea Petersen and Caroline Frank

We had a very successful season at the Mill this 

year with over 660 visitors signing our guest book.  

They came from 27 states, as well as Canada, 

Germany, China, and Australia.   

The guest book contained some interesting 

comments such as “beautiful spot here, thank you,” 

“life is good,” and, our personal favorite, “Loved 

seeing this Mill – on our bikes – and everything from 

here is downhill!”   

The single entry on August 27, 2011 reads:  

“Rainey, Hurricane Irene.  Tied mill blades and tied 

cap to runner stone.  Saturday 2:00 PM.”  Signed-- 

Andy Shrake – Millwright.   We appreciate Andy’s 

efforts in securing the mill in anticipation of the storm.  

Fortunately, Hurricane Irene took a different path 

which lessened its severity, and the mill did not sustain 

any damage.  

New Exterior Signage  

The new exterior signage, recommended by the 

2010 external assessment to bring the mill into 

compliance with accessibility regulations, has been 

completed with a grant from the Rhode Island Council 

for the Humanities.  The signs, pictured below, are 

ready for installation in the early spring.   

The two signs will be mounted on National Park 

Service-approved cantilevered trays.  One sign 

discusses the history of the mill –how the land on 

which it stands was confiscated from a Tory family 

following the American Revolution, and the town 

petitioned the state of Rhode Island to give it the 

confiscated land for a mill.  Fourteen millers operated 

the mill over the next 109 years.  After the mill became 

unprofitable in 1896, it stood derelict for eight years 

until a loosely organized group calling itself the 

Jamestown Windmill Association raised the money to 

purchase it in1904.  Eight years later the Windmill 

Association turned the mill over to the newly 

incorporated Jamestown Historical Society, which has 

maintained the mill for the last 100 years. 

The second sign explains – through pictures and 

words – how the mill turns wind power into the power 

necessary to turn the 3,500 pound grindstone. 

Drafts of the signs were displayed in the mill 

during August and September. 

Broken Beam 

Not all news this summer was as good.  On 

Saturday, August 6, a guest touring the mill was at the 

south window on the third floor when a short floor 

beam supporting the floor underneath him broke.  

Thankfully the floor boards under the man held, 

although they did sag, and the man was not hurt.   

Our Building and Grounds Chair Greg DiGasper 

blocked visitor access to the second and third floors 

until the situation could be inspected and repaired.  

We are pleased to report that the repairs were made by 

William Smith III, and the upper floors are once again 

open to visitors.   

With any old building – and our 224 year old mill 

is no exception – continual maintenance and upkeep 

are inevitable.  Through the generous support of our 

members and the annual distribution from the 

endowment left for the mill by Nan Thompson and 

Margaret Whithall Evans, we have been able to hire 

the special craftsmen necessary to do that work 

properly.  Thank you for your contributions.  They 

enable us to care for this very special Jamestown 

landmark.
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Buildings & Grounds 
 

by Greg DiGasper

The Building and Grounds committee works with 

other committees to maintain all JHS properties and 

keep them in good repair.  

Windmill 

As described in the Windmill Committee report, 

in early August, one of the floor beams on the third 

floor under the south window gave way under the 

weight of a visitor.  The second and third floors were 

roped off for a few weeks while repairs were being 

organized.  Repairs were completed toward the end of 

the season.   

B&G continues to work with Andy Shrake, the 

Cape Cod millwright who maintains and repairs 

historic wind and water mills, to address the list of 

minor repairs, safety upgrades, and preventive 

maintenance suggested by the 2010 external 

assessment.  The majority of these repairs and 

upgrades will be completed prior to the 2012 season. 

Museum and Vault  

The attic staircase received a complete overhaul 

this summer.  William Smith III installed new 

handrails and a residential assist bar at the top of the 

stairs, and he replaced all the treads, making necessary 

repairs to the stringers.   

At the beginning of summer, a freeze in the 

HVAC system prevented the system from properly 

cooling the building. The water overflow pan was 

adjusted to allow better ventilation of the cooling 

element to correct the problem.   

B&G and the Collections Committee determined 

that the cost to add a cast iron rail to the rear entry, as 

recommended by the Conservation Assessment 

Program (CAP) report, was cost prohibitive and 

unnecessary.   

When the museum was renovated in 2006, the 

track lighting in place at the time was retained.  Since 

then, three of the lighting units have failed and efforts 

to replacement them have been unsuccessful. Analysis 

of lighting requirements and evaluation of alternatives 

are underway. 

During the winter B&G and Collections will work 

together to create a written document outlining the 

annual maintenance protocol for the building.  

Meetinghouse 

Under the guidance of both William Smith III and 

Andy Shrake, we are exploring methods of reducing 

the humidity levels in the meetinghouse.  The most 

extreme method, but probably the best, is for the 

building to be lifted and a foundation or cement slab 

to be poured underneath it.  At the same time, the sills 

should be replaced with pressure-treated timber.  This 

method will reduce or halt the settling of the 

foundation and structure so as to reduce stress on the 

building’s joinery.   

In addition, we will be requesting bids to replace 

the roof on the entire building.  

 

Quaker Meetinghouse 
 

by Harry Wright 

The Quaker Meetinghouse had, finally, a generally 

quiet season in 2011.  There were no building crises 

and no significant construction projects, although 

some are being planned, as noted in the B&G report.  

The Jamestown schoolchildren visited in April and 

experienced the difficulty of sitting unfidgeting in total 

silence for a whole minute.  Visitors came by at the 

opening of the windmill and meetinghouse in June and 

on Smithsonian Magazine Museum Day in September.  

There were occasional visitors by appointment over 

the course of the summer.  

Quaker meeting for worship was held on Sundays 

from the first of May until the end of October.  

May every season be so peaceful.  

 

Broken beam under south window 
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Conanicut Battery 
 

by Larry McDonald  

After the Battery Day event, the Battery 

Committee focused on general maintenance and on 

clearing the trails and battery parapets.   Assisted by 

young people from the Jamestown Job Corps, JHS 

volunteers cleared the main path and worked on 

reducing the woody growth in the battery itself. 

Students from Providence College were scheduled 

to help cut back the vegetation in September, but 

inclement weather forced a postponement of the 

effort till October.   Foul weather hampered the 

cutting effort again, so the students worked on 

repairing washed out sections of the main trail into the 

battery.  Town workers, who were removing a 

diseased tree, provided mechanical support by 

spreading stone dust along the trail.  The Battery 

Committee greatly appreciates the work of the PC 

students and the Town workers. 

The recommended control burn of the battery to 

allow the growth of native grasses has been hampered 

by wet weather.  It is currently scheduled to be done 

prior to December 2011. 

The Battery Committee plans to continue to do 

maintenance on the trails through the winter months.  

Any person who is interested in helping please contact 

Larry McDonald at 423-0047.   

 

 

Education 
 

by Sally Schott 

Jamestown students have been experiencing 

Jamestown history in many ways over the last six 

months. 

Last June, 120 students from both the Melrose 

Avenue and Lawn Avenue schools visited the museum 

to see the Jamestown and the Silver Screen exhibit.  The 

fifth graders were especially excited about their 

contribution to the exhibit.  Their Jamestown history 

reports were produced as videos, using photographs – 

some from the historical society but many taken for 

the project – and voice-overs.  The videos have 

become a permanent part of the JHS collection. 

The JHS display case at the Lawn Avenue School 

has a new exhibit this fall, thanks to the dedicated 

Collections Committee team.  What Might Have Been. 

For Better or Worse? features proposed Jamestown 

projects that never came to fruition – such as a canal 

through the center of the island, the Commerce Oil 

refinery, and a hoof-and-mouth disease laboratory. 

The display case in “the 5th grade hallway” just 

outside the library is the perfect location for the 

society to provide snapshots of our island’s history.  
 

 

Lawn Avenue School Panel 

 

During their visit to the museum in June, first graders 

from the Melrose Avenue School watched and listened 

to the videos made by the Lawn Avenue School fifth 

graders. 
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Collections Committee 
 

by Dianne Rugh 

  

This fall has been a transition period for the 

Collections Committee.  Sue Maden, who served as 

chair for six years, stepped down in August. The chair 

must be a member of the JHS Board, and the society’s 

term limits required Sue to leave the Board.  She 

continues to share her expertise as JHS Archivist and 

member of the Collections Committee.   

Dianne Rugh took over as chair in September.  

Other members of the committee are Rosemary 

Enright, Joe Logan, Alice Noble, and Linda Warner.  

The committee meets at 1 p.m. on the first Tuesday of 

the month in the JHS vault in Town Hall. 

Year Long Themes 

This year 14 local non-profit organizations joined 

with JHS to develop and sponsor programs with the 

theme Jamestown and the Silver Screen.  The response of 

community groups was gratifying and resulted in 15 

programs offered throughout the year.  The programs 

were varied.  Movies filmed in Jamestown were shown 

either at the Jamestown Philomenian Library or the 

Jamestown Arts Center.  The Teen Center offered a 

program in designing and filming a video.  The 

Quononoquott Garden Club sponsored a contest of 

table settings based on movies.  

In 2012, JHS marks its 100th anniversary.  Special 

exhibits and programs are being planned to 

commemorate the event along with semi-monthly 

Jamestown Press articles about Jamestown history. 

JHS Museum Exhibits 

Jamestown on Stage and Screen, the summer Museum 

exhibit, opened on June 19.  During the 82 days the 

Museum was open to the public, 606 visitors signed 

the guest book.  In addition, the museum opened for 

special school tours, and 120 students, accompanied 

by 18 adults, visited.   

The exhibit, which continued the society’s year-

long theme of filmmaking in Jamestown, showcased 

films made in Jamestown or by Jamestowners and 

Jamestown’s connection to filmmaking.  A timeline 

compared events in Jamestown with events in the 

larger evolution of filmmaking.  The “stage” history 

included the story of Jamestown’s Palace Theatre and 

featured costumes and posters from Jamestown 

Community Theatre productions. 

For the first time, a JHS exhibit included a video 

component.  A $1,000 legislative grant sponsored by 

Deb Ruggiero and technical support from Frank 

Meyer and Bob Saunders allowed three sets of videos 

to be enjoyed on two computers in the museum. 

Frank also digitized Bill Sprague’s taping of the 

Jamestown Theatre Inc.’s 1982 production of Love, Sex 

and the IRS. 

Twelve historic film clips, digitized by Frank 

Meyer, ranged from a 1927 film of a West Passage 

ferry beached in Sheffield Cove to a video of the 2011 

Penguin Plunge at Mackerel Cove.   

The fifth graders at the Lawn Avenue School 

wrote their Jamestown history reports as videos this 

spring, using a collection of photographs and voice-

overs.  The student videos included in the exhibit told 

 

Pictures from the summer exhibit 
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the history of Jamestown’s churches, schools, bridges, 

ferries, and lighthouses and the story of Jamestown 

and the Hurricane of 1938.  

Videos from the Teen Center program in how to 

design and film a video formed the third set.   

Also in June, a permanent Ferry Exhibit opened in 

the rear of the Museum.  The exhibit, created in 

response to many requests for a ferry exhibit, displays 

some of the Society’s rich collection of ferry artifacts.  

Next year more ferry related items from the JHS 

collection will be added to the exhibit. 

Library and Lawn School Exhibits 

Three exhibits were mounted in the society’s case 

at the Jamestown Philomenian Library.  An exhibit of 

Jamestowners’ certificates included marriage licenses, 

diplomas, military citations, and patents.  A second 

exhibit, Jamestown Eateries and Menus, displayed 

menus from Jamestown restaurants and menus of 

special occasion dinners held in Jamestown.   

The current library exhibit shows some of the 

smaller donations received since November 2010.  

Although because of space limitations only a few of 

the many interesting and important donations can be 

displayed, a complete list of all donations is on top of 

the case and the table on page 8 acknowledges all gifts 

received since the last newsletter. 

 Sally Schott describes above the What Might Have 

Been. For Better or Worse? exhibit installed this fall at the 

Lawn Avenue School. 

New Permanent Exhibit 

As reported on page 1, five of the signs from the 

JHS collection are now on permanent display in the 

back stairwell of the Town Hall.  These signs and the 

photographs from the JHS collection that accompany 

them show what Jamestown was like in the late 19th 

and early 20th centuries.  

JHS Online Catalog 

Thanks to our volunteer catalogers the JHS online 

catalog now contains over 22,500 records of items in 

the JHS collection.  The online catalog was updated in 

October, and the plan is to update the website catalog 

twice a year.   

Since going online in March, over 470 users have 

accessed the catalog, making more than 2,427 

searches.  Through the online catalog, Johnson and 

Wales Culinary Museum learned about a jonny cake 

board in the JHS collection and borrowed it for their 

exhibit on African-American food.   

To search the catalog, go to the JHS website at 

jamestownhistoricalsociety.org and click on “On-line 

Catalog” at the top of the home page. 

Collections in the Vault 

Wonderful donations continue to come to the 

society, filling the storage space in the vault.  The 2010 

outside assessment (CAP Report) made possible by a 

National Preservation grant suggested investigating 

compact shelving for the vault and recommended the 

firm, Systematics of Westboro MA.  A representative 

of the company visited the JHS vault and museum and 

developed a plan that is estimated to more than double 

the vault’s storage capacity.  Preparations are being 

made to apply for grants to cover the cost of the 

compact shelving project.   

Another CAP Report recommendation, an 

inventory of the collections, is ongoing.  The textiles 

have been completely inventoried, carefully examined 

for any damage, and refolded – a task that needs to be 

repeated at least every other year.  All the books have 

been inventoried; the overlap between the JHS 

collection and the Jamestown Philomenian Library 

local history collection is being recorded in the JHS 

catalog.  Over three-quarters of the ephemeral folders, 

which hold the smaller paper artifacts, have been 

examined and inventoried. 

 

Laura Gorham (left) and Providence College students 

Nicole Orzetti and Denise Gagnon, plant the last of the 

100 “Mrs. John T. Scheeper” tulip bulbs donated by 

Harry T. Burn.  The tulip is named for a Jamestowner 

who summered at “The Crickets” on Fox Hill Farm. 
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Disaster Preparedness 

Sue Maden and Jamestown Town Clerk, Cheryl 

Fernstrom, attended disaster preparedness workshops 

on June 7 and September 28.  The workshops, 

“Protecting the Past Rhode Island,” were conducted 

by the Northeast Document Conservation Center and 

ArtCare.   

The first workshop focused on disaster response 

and the need of organizations like historical societies 

to prepare contact information, to develop plans of 

action, and to identify priorities in their collections 

before a disaster strikes.  The second workshop was 

on recovery of cultural heritage materials, especially 

items damaged by water.   

Sue wrote a detailed report on the workshops and 

presented the information to the Collections 

Committee, which is working on disaster plans, 

another recommendation of the CAP Report. 

Oral History Project: Growing Up in Jamestown 

The oral history project, Growing Up in Jamestown, 

continues.  Anna Dutra, Judy Garlick, Don Gillis, 

Donna Bowen Mc Daniel, and Ken Silvia were 

interviewed this summer, bringing the total number of 

completed interviews to 19.  The reminiscences and 

memories of growing up and living in Jamestown 

these long-time residents have shared provide an 

invaluable resource for information about earlier 

Jamestown.   

From the Vault 

Patti Cassidy videotaped a second program for the 

series, “From the Vault,” which is shown on public 

access TV.  The program was a tour of the summer 

exhibits in the Jamestown Museum.   

The series of programs are available on YouTube 

with links from the JHS web site and Facebook.
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Donations and Acquisitions: May 2011 through November 2011 
 

Anonymous: Island Reality sign.  

Anonymous: Newport Daily News article (April 15-
16, 2006) about Jamestown Bridge demolition. 

 Beavertail Museum Lighthouse Association: CD 
of part 2 of Shipwreck Data Sheets with 135 
wrecks; photos of sailors at Beavertail after 
WWII and of sailors at the Naval Command 
Center and at Spraycliff (summer, 1949). 

Judy Bell:  Portrait probably done by Jeanne 
Bunkley, 1990, in men of Jamestown series. 

Harry T. Burn: 100 tulip bulbs (Mrs. John T. 
Scheepers) and plant fertilizer. 

Shelley and Geoff Campbell: framed poster 
published by Wilfred Warren of Jamestown 
ferryboats; copy of “Good Old Summertime” 
autographed to the Ruddys by author, 1981. 

Ken Caswell: two CDs (different versions) of fire 
department in Fort Wetherill cove while the 
movie Evening was being filmed, 2007. 

Archie Clarke: Photos of Capt. Clay Evans and 
John Brazil, Jr., engineer. 

Jemma Craig: Seven pages of Fox Hill Farm 
historical background. 

Elizabeth Delude-Dix: poster for Traces of the 
Trade. 

Bob Dolan: Poster about the state tree of Rhode 
Island (Red Maple); other documentary papers. 

John Doty: 1936 plan for proposed bridge over 
West Passage; PWA Project for the Jamestown 

& Newport Ferry Co.; photo of him at foot of 
bridge, 2/18/2011; photos of Pennsylvania 
Railroad ferries that came to Jamestown. 

Jessie Dutra: postcards: one of windmill with sails 
and one of Beavertail Lighthouse. 

Rosemary Enright:  watercolors by Jeanne Bunkley 
of windmill and of Beavertail Lighthouse; 
postcard of Grey Ledge tea house; five other 
postcards with scenes of Jamestown; wifi 
network hardware for vault. 

Janet Fletcher: tile of ferryboat “Governor Carr”; 
postcard of aerial view of Shoreby Hill.  

JHS purchase: “Men of Jamestown” charcoal 
portraits by Jeanne Bunkley. 

Lorie Fuller: photos of the Boone family. 

Charlene Gamble: an ad from the Evening Bulletin, 
Nov. 8, 1957 about Commerce Oil.  

John Godena: Godena Garage sign; air raid 
warden helmet worn by his father during WW II; 
account book from Godena Garage, 1971-72. 

Jamestown Yacht Club Foolsô Rules Committee 
Fools’ Rules items include 31 T-shirts (1984-
1987, 1989-2011).  

Varoujan Karentz: wooden sign “Clarke’s Village” 
made by donor in 1984. 

Alexandra Kent: postcards sent to Elizabeth Clark, 
Katherine Clark, and Anna Clark. 

Joe Logan: a laptop computer. 



Fall 2011 – 11 

Sue Maden:  mug from Dutch Harbor Boat Yard, 
Inc.; 19 post cards for Randall Art Gallery 
exhibits; Jamestown button with image of 
Beavertail Lighthouse; Jamestown town clerk 
pencil; photographs of newspaper photos of 
Jamestown; postcard size photo of Whale Rock 
Lighthouse; notebook of clippings and notes 
about “What Might Have Been” in Jamestown; 
magic Lantern slide of Tom Davis driving ox 
driven watering cart (Dr. George McClellan’s 
name is on slide); five postcards with scenes of 
Jamestown; The Grandmothers' Cookbooks: 
Letitia Ellicott Carpenter [Mrs. William Redwood 
Wright] ["Muz"],  Anna Wharton [Mrs. Harrison 
S. Morris] ["Mama"] Where They Grew Up and 
How They Lived,  Gathered by Mrs. Sydney L. 
Wright,1977. 

Peter Marcus: scanner. 

Donna Bowen McDaniel: numerous photos of 
buildings, people and events; certificates, 
ribbons and programs. 

Kathryn Smith Murphy: seven Rotary photographs 
of 1950 Yuletide Season; photo of WW II Honor 
Roll, draped in flags; photo of a floral 
arrangement marked “Newport Rotary 1955.”  

Manny Neronha:  booklet, “Over Mount Hope 
Bridge); 1929, includes rates effective Nov. 1, 
1929 and map with Jamestown with no bridges.  

Roland Parent: four scale drawings of ferryboats 
(including “Beavertail”  and “Governor Carr”); 
1927 article about the “Governor Carr.” 

Duncan Pendlebury: CD with photos of Davis 
House on East Shore Road before demolition.  

Rhode Island Department of Transportation: 
photos of Jamestown Bridge demolition 
(addenda to prior report).  

Jim Rugh: index card with name and bar code for 
voting at Financial Town Meeting on 6/6/2011. 

St. Matthewôs Thrift Shop: a dress form for exhibit 
use in the museum; an image from the back of a 
picture about the A.M. Mitchell shop. 

Ginny Saunders: ticket and two favors of special 
police buttons from Chief Tighe’s 6/15/2011 
retirement party. 

Bill Sprague and Frank Meyer: DVD of Jamestown 
Players, 1981, play Love Sex & the IRS (Bill 
loaned VHS; Frank converted it to DVD). 

Town Planning Office: Map of Town, State, 
Federal, and Land Trust Property; aerial maps 
from 1938. 

Chris Walsh: a cardboard sign with an arrow and 
canoes used to direct people to filming sites for 
“Moonrise Kingdom.” 

John E. (Bud) Walsh: badge No. 5 from the 
Jamestown Bridge Commission which was worn 
by his father, Elliott Walsh, a toll collector. 

Norma Walsh: Photos of her kitchen table which 
was one of the wheels of the “Beavertail” and 
between each of the spokes are original 
paintings by Frank West; photos of two other 
West paintings. Delia Klingbeil was the 
photographer. 

Linda Warner: “Central Baptist Church Cookbook, 
1989”; “Victorian Verses and Random Rhymes” 
by Wilfrid deL. Burgess,” 1988 (this copy is 
signed by the author to Linda and George 
[Warner]; printed invitation to celebrate 175 
years of St. Matthew’s Episcopal Church on 
September 24 at Channel Bells, 27 Newport 
Street; a button for “Beavertail Lighthouse, 
Jamestown, RI  Not Your Typical Volunteer.”   

Harry Wright: donation towards purchase of “Men 
of Jamestown” charcoal portrait series by 
Jeanne Bunkley. 

Tot Wright: “A Trip Across the Bay” by Anna 
Wharton Morris, Bulletin of the Newport 
Historical Society, January 1936; “The Romance 
of the Two Hannahs” by Anna Wharton Morris, 
Bulletin of the Newport Historical Society, 
October 1923 (the two Hannahs were the 
author’s grandmothers); photo with seven ferry 
company employees, ca. 1955.  

 

Some of the Fools’ Rules Regatta t-shirts donated by the Jamestown Yacht Club Fools’ Rules Committee 
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